
AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, October 17, 2022 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 1 
 

1. Call to Order   
2. Roll Call  
3. Invocation and Pledge  
4. Announcements  
5. Approval of the Agenda  
6. Public Input  
7. Consent Agenda  

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting held October 3, 2022 

8. Introduce New Employees 
9. Employee Recognition 

10. Proclamation – 75th Anniversary of Dawsonville Hardware 
 

BUSINESS 
 

11. ANX-C2200122: Jim Chapman Communities, Inc has petitioned to annex into the city limits of 
Dawsonville the 3-acre tract known as TMP 093 046 (tract 2), located at 922 Hwy 53 East, with 
a County Zoning of RSR (Residential Sub-Rural) to City Zoning R6 (Multiple-Family District).  
Public Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on September 12, 2022, and City Council on 
October 3, 2022.  City Council for a decision on October 17, 2022.  

 

12. ZA-C2200123: Jim Chapman Communities, Inc has petitioned a zoning amendment for TMP 093 
043, 093 044, and 093 047; Located at 2120 Perimeter Road and 922 Hwy 53 East from R1 
(Restricted Single-Family Residential District) to R6 (Multiple-Family Residential District).  Public 
Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on September 12, 2022, and City Council October 3, 2022.  
City Council for a decision on October 17, 2022. 
 

WORK SESSION 
 
 

STAFF REPORTS 
 

13. Bob Bolz, City Manager 
14. Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator 

 

     EXECUTIVE SESSION, IF NEEDED        

     ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
   

The next scheduled City Council meeting is Monday, November 7, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Those persons with disabilities who require reasonable accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 
participate in this meeting or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting, should contact the Clerk at 
Dawsonville City Hall at 706-265-3256 at least two (2) business days prior to the meeting. 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                    CONSENT AGENDA           

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/17/2022     
   
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 

 
   CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF ITEMS BELOW; SEE ATTACHED 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS  
 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting held October 3, 2022 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #       7     
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       APPROVE MINUTES    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/17/2022     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM: 

 
• REGULAR MEETING OCTOBER 3, 2022 

 
 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
 
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
           
  AMEND OR APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
     REQUESTED BY:  Beverly Banister, City Clerk    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

 AGENDA ITEM #   7a      
 

 

 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, October 3, 2022 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 3 
 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Eason called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm. 
 

2. ROLL CALL: Present were Councilmember John Walden, Councilmember Mark French, 
Councilmember Caleb Phillips, Councilmember William Illg, City Attorney Kevin Tallant, City 
Manager Bob Bolz, City Clerk Beverly Banister, Public Works Director Trampas Hansard, Utilities 
Crew Chief Blake Croft, Finance Administrator Robin Gazaway, Interim Planning Director Diane 
Callahan and Director of Downtown Development Amanda Edmondson.  

 

3. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE:  Invocation and pledge were led by Councilmember Phillips.   
 

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  Mayor Eason announced and congratulated the recent wins for Georgia’s 
sports teams; the Falcons, Georgia Tech, the Braves and UGA. He also congratulated Chase Elliott 
for winning at Talladega.  He stated the Farmer’s Market will be open through October 15th and the 
Health Department will hold a drive-thru flu vaccination event on Thursday, October 6th from 9:00 – 
3:00 pm.  Lasty, the Mountain Moonshine Festival will occur October 21 – 23, 2022 at the 
Dawsonville Municipal Complex and Main Street Park. 

 

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  Motion to approve the agenda as submitted made by M. French; 
second by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

6. PUBLIC INPUT:  None 
 

7. CONSENT AGENDA:  Motion to approve the consent agenda for the following items (a,b) made by 
C. Phillips; second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. 

 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held September 19, 2022 
• Executive Session held September 19, 2022 

b. Approve Use of Memorial Gardens for 2nd Annual Ghost Walk 
 

8. INTRODUCE THE DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT MANAGER – AMANDA EDMONDSON:  City 
Manager Bolz introduced Amanda Edmondson as the City’s Director of Downtown Development, 
Tourism and Historic Preservation.  She thanked the Council for their leadership and expressed her 
enthusiasm to be a part of the City of Dawsonville team.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

9. ANX-C2200122: Jim Chapman Communities, Inc has petitioned to annex into the city limits of 
Dawsonville the 3-acre tract known as TMP 093 046 (tract 2), located at 922 Hwy 53 East, with a 
County Zoning of RSR (Residential Sub-Rural) to City Zoning R6 (Multiple-Family District).  Public 
Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on September 12, 2022, and City Council on October 3, 
2022.  City Council for a decision on October 17, 2022.  
 

Interim Planning Director Callahan read the annexation request.  Motion to open the public hearing 
made by M. French; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  Mayor Eason conducted 
the public hearing.  The following person(s) spoke in favor of the request: 
 

• Joey Homans, 272 Hwy 9 South, Dawsonville – He stated this annexation is in conjunction 
with the rezone request (item #10) and would reserve his time to speak at that time.  He 
stated they would have taken the entire tract; however, it would have left an unincorporated 
island.  
 

• Jim Chapman, 2700 Cumberland Pkwy, Atlanta – He provided a presentation concerning his 
background, similar building projects, specifics on the types of homes to be built, details on 
build to rent communities and demographics about the types of families living in them.  

 

      The ten-minute allowance for the public hearing expired.  Motion by C. Phillips to extend the public 
hearing by five minutes; second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 

• Karen McCord, 2120 Perimeter Road, Dawsonville -  She is the owner of the property and 
stated this tract has been in her family for over 100 years.  She further stated the property 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, October 3, 2022 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 2 of 3 
 

has been on the market for over ten years and they cannot continue to pay the taxes.  She 
is in favor of the community presented by Mr. Chapman for her family’s property and 
requests the Council approve the annexation and rezoning of the property.  

 

       No one spoke in opposition to the annexation request.   
 

       Motion to close the public hearing made by W. Illg; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.   

 

10. ZA-C2200123: Jim Chapman Communities, Inc has petitioned a zoning amendment for TMP 093 
043, 093 044, and 093 047; Located at 2120 Perimeter Road and 922 Hwy 53 East from R1 
(Restricted Single-Family Residential District) to R6 (Multiple-Family Residential District).  Public 
Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on September 12, 2022, and City Council October 3, 2022.  
City Council for a decision on October 17, 2022. 
 

Interim Planning Director Callahan stated she received a letter from Mr. Homans shortly before the 
meeting outlining the applicant’s agreement to certain conditions set forth by the Planning 
Department.  She then read the rezone request and further stated the Planning Commission 
recommended denial of the request.  Motion to open the public hearing made by M. French; second 
by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  Mayor Eason conducted the public hearing.  The 
following person(s) spoke in favor of the request: 
 

• Joey Homans, 272 Hwy 9 South, Dawsonville – He first stated he adopts and incorporates 
all comments made during the annexation request relating to the rezone request.  He stated 
the R6 zoning request meets the City’s requirements for an R6 zoning; the zoning meets the 
City’s Comprehensive Plan and agrees to the conditions as stated in his letter dated 
10/03/2022.  Regarding the recommendation for no access easement adjoining the HWY 
53E and Perimeter Road frontage boundary, he stated it was his understanding they would 
not be public roads as per the site plan.  It will be a private road emphasizing it will not be a 
cut-through road from Hwy 53 to Perimeter Road; they will be gated access roads. He also 
stated Ms. McCord did not speak against the Sweetwater Preserve development when 
notified of its rezoning request,  recognizing that it met the City’s requirements.  He 
discussed the potential traffic improvements and Mr. Chapman’s willingness to contribute to 
them. He also stated in Mr. Chapman’s other developments, there have been little to no 
service required by local law enforcement and will provide documentation supporting his 
statement.  Lastly, he stated Mr. Chapman’s commitment to the long term maintenance and 
management of the property and urged the Council to approve the annexation and rezone 
request.   

 

      No one spoke in opposition to the rezone request 
 

      Motion to close the public hearing made by C. Phillips; second by M. French.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.  

 

      Councilmember Illg asked several questions about the number of homes Jim Chapman 
Communities have built and where, the demand for this type of community and the information 
behind the demographics provided regarding school aged children within his other communities.  
Mr. Chapman provided responses and a brief discussion of renting vs. buying occurred.  Additional 
discussion occurred regarding the traffic impact on the area.  Mr. Homans further contributed to the 
conversation by supporting the rental community advantages and spoke about Mr. Chapmans 
potential contribution to traffic improvements for the area.  He also spoke about the plans for the 
entrance/exit of the community to best mitigate traffic concerns and stated the Council could 
stipulate the community be built according to the plans provided.   

 

 
 
BUSINESS 

 
 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, October 3, 2022 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 3 of 3 
 

11. REQUEST FOR REFUND OF BUILDING PERMIT FEE:  Paul Winschuh spoke to the Council 
requesting a refund for his building permit for his shed.   
 

Motion to approve a $400 building permit refund (Permit No. C230029) to Paul Winschuh made by 
C. Phillips; second by M. French.  Councilmember Illg asked if there were additional residents who 
may come forward for a refund request; Diane Callahan stated no other permits were issued of this 
kind.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 

12. RED HAWK SUBDIVISION ROAD DEDICATION REQUEST:  Motion to approve the acceptance of 
the dedication request for the Red Hawk Subdivision roads consisting of Aplomado Lane West, 
Aplomado Lane East, Harrier Drive, Red Hawk Drive, Kestrel Court West, Kestrel Court East, 
Peregrine Lane North and Peregrine Lane South and Swanson Street and the right of ways made 
by C. Phillips; second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. (Exhibit “A”) 

 

13. UPDATE APPRAISAL FOR ELLIOTT FIELD AIRPORT PROPERTY:  Motion to approve staff to 
proceed with the updated appraisal for the Elliott Field Airport Property not to exceed $22,000 and 
to be paid out of General Fund Reserves if needed made by W. Illg; second by C. Phillips.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor.   

 

14. AWARD BIDS – PICKLEBALL AND BASKETBALL COURTS FOR MAIN STREET PARK:  
Motion to award the bids to Signature Tennis Courts, Inc. for the construction of four (4) pickleball 
courts with lighting and the construction of a basketball court with fencing and to pursue the 
engineering and grading to prepare for the construction of the courts not to exceed a total of 
$250,000.00 to be paid out of SPLOST VII for the complete project made by C. Phillips; second by 
M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.           

     ADJOURNMENT: 
 

At 5:56 p.m. a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by M. French; second by C. Phillips.  Vote 
carried unanimously. 

 
 

 Approved this 17th day of October 2022. 
 
By: CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

         
   ___________________________________ 
   Mike Eason, Mayor 
 
   ___________________________________  
   Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 

 
         
   William Illg, Councilmember Post 2  

 
         
   John Walden, Councilmember Post 3 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 
 
Attest: _________________________        
           Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:        INTRODUCE NEW EMPLOYEES:  HARMIT BEDI & ANNETTE WATSON____  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/17/2022     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
      TO INTRODUCE HARMIT BEDI & ANNETTE WATSON 
    
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 

 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
   
 
 

 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:                 Bob Bolz, City Manager________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    8     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                                  EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION_____________  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/17/2022     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

TO RECOGNIZE AND PRESENT THE FOLLOWING:  
• SERVICE AWARDS FOR OCTOBER 
• SEPTEMBER 2022 EMPLOYEE OF THE MONTH  
• SUMMER 2022 EMPLOYEE OF THE QUARTER 

 
    
 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 

 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
   
 
 

 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:                 Bob Bolz, City Manager________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    9    
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   PROCLAMATION – 75TH ANNIVERSARY OF DAWSONVILLE HARDWARE 

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/17/2022   
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

    TO READ AND PRESENT PROCLAMATION FOR 75TH ANNIVERSARY OF DAWSONVILLE 
HARDWARE 

    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

     
   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Mike Eason, Mayor____ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #  10    
 

 

 



 

 
 

BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 
 

A PROCLAMATION 
 

DAWSONVILLE HARDWARE STORE 
75TH YEAR ANNIVERSARY 

 
 
WHEREAS, Dawsonville Hardware Store is the oldest family-owned business in Dawson 
County. 
 
WHEREAS, Carlton and Cleva Gilleland opened Dawsonville Hardware in 1947.   
 
WHEREAS, Dwight Gilleland took over the business from his parents in 1977, in the same year 
Dawsonville Hardware was incorporated and became a member of the Dawson County Chamber 
of Commerce. 
 
WHEREAS, Dwight Gilleland also served as the chamber’s first president and is one of the 
chamber’s longest, continuous members.   
 
WHEREAS, Challenging times through a recession caused most businesses in Dawsonville to 
struggle, Dawsonville Hardware kept the doors open to offer customers the same service, even 
through the challenge; and managed to persevere. 
 
WHEREAS, Dawsonville Hardware continues to maintain loyal customers and attract new ones.   
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor of Dawsonville, I,  
Mayor Mike Eason, , do hereby deem it an honor to present this proclamation to 
DAWSONVILLE HARDWARE in recognition and appreciation of its investment in and 
commitment to our community. 
 
In witness thereof, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the City of Dawsonville to 
be affixed this 17th day of October in the year of our Lord, Two Thousand and Twenty-Two. 
 
 
    
 
       __________________________ 
       Mike Eason, Mayor 
 
 
 
       Attest: 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       Beverly Banister, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:                                       ANX-C2200122 ______________________ 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/17/2022   
 

 

BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #_______________________________________ 

 Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget: _____ Capital Budget: Other________  
 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____ Enterprise Fund: _____General Fund 

 

 

PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: VOTE  
 
ANX-C2200122: Jim Chapman Communities, Inc has petitioned to annex into the city limits of Dawsonville 
the 3-acre tract known as TMP 093 046 (tract 2), Located at 922 Hwy 53 East, with a County Zoning of RSR 
(Residential Sub-Rural) to City Zoning R6 (Multiple-Family Residential District).  Public Hearing Dates:  
Planning Commission on September 12, 2022, and City Council on October 3, 2022.  City Council for a 
decision on October 17, 2022. 
 
HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
1. Property is Post 2 City Council Member in William Illg District. 

2. The subject property adjoins City Zoned R6 District to the South, County RSR District to the East, City 
R1 District to the West and County RSR district to the North. 
 

3. Applicant is requesting to annex three (3) acres. 

4. City water and sewer infrastructure adjoins property. 

5. City water and sewer capacity is available. 

6. Applicant submitted data to the Planning Department for the DRI submission and is currently in the 
review process by GMRC.  Final decision will be delayed until DRI review is completed. 
 

7. Planning Commission denied the request on 09.12.2022. 

8. Dawson County Board of Commissioners heard the request no 09.16.2022.  The board voted to send a 
letter objecting the proposed annexation to Mayor and City Council. 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPTIONS:  
 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 

 
 

DEPARTMENT:  Planning and Zoning_____________________________________________________ 
 
REQUESTED BY: Diane Callahan________________________________________________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 11 
 



































                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:                                           ZA-C2200123_______________________ 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/17/2022    
 

 

BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #_______________________________________ 

 Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget: _____ Capital Budget: Other________  
 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____ Enterprise Fund: _____General Fund 

 

 

PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: VOTE  
 
ZA-C2200123: Jim Chapman Communities, Inc has petitioned a zoning amendment for TMP 093 043, 093 044, 
and 093 047; Located at 2120 Perimeter Road and 922 Hwy 53 East from R1 (Restricted Single-Family 
Residential District) to R6 (Multiple-Family Residential District).  Public Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission 
on September 12, 2022, and City Council October 3, 2022.  City Council for a decision on October 17, 2022. 
 
HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
1. Property is in Post 2 City Council Member William Illg District.  

2. Applicant is requesting to rezone property from R1 District (Restricted Single Family Residential 
District) to R6 District (Multiple-Family Residential District). 
 

3. Applicant is requesting to rezone 33.98 acres. 

4. Proposing 195 rental units with a density of 5.74/units per acres. 

5. Proposing minimum 1,000 heated square foot rental units. 
 

6. TMP 093 043 annexed into the city on January 9, 2005.  TMP 093 044 and 093 047 annexed into the 
City September 9, 2013. 
 

7. The subject property adjoins City zoned R6 district to the South, County RSR District to the east, City 
PUD District to the West and City R1 and HB District to the North.  
 

8. 2018 Comprehensive Plan character area proposes mixed/multifamily use. 
 

9. Adjoining Sweetwater Preserve subdivision density 3.11 units per acre. 
 

10. Adjoining Farmington Woods apartment development is 5.98 units per acre. 
 

11. Applicant submitted data to the Planning Department for the DRI submission and is currently in the 
review process by GMRC.  Final decision will be delayed until DRI review is complete.  
 

12. If approved the Planning Department recommends a no access easement adjoining Hwy 53 East and 
Perimeter Road frontage boundary.  
 

13. If approved the Planning Department recommends the installation of sanitary lines and sewer 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 12 
 



manholes up to Perimeter Road right-of-way for future sewer outfall service for parcels 093 041, 093 
063 and 093 033. 
 

14. If approved the Planning Department recommends that applicant donate funds for future intersection 
improvements at Perimeter Road and Hwy 9 South.  Funds in the of $1,000.00 per unit shall be  
donated prior to each building permit approval.  Funds shall be eligible for future impact fee credit if 
the City adopts said fees in the future. 
 

15. If approved the Planning Department recommends the applicant donate funds for the future 
intersection improvements at Perimeter Road and Hwy 53 East.  Funds in the amount of $500.00 per 
unit shall be donated prior to each building permit approval.  Funds shall be eligible for future impact 
fee credit if the City adopts said fees in the future.  Condition warranted due to proposed right turn 
movement of 230 vehicles/day is 92 % of 250 vehicles/day threshold.  Study did not include future 
bypass road passenger and truck traffic. 
 

16. If approved the Planning Department recommends the installation of a dedicated left turn lane on 
Perimeter Road and development driveway #1.  Condition warranted due to proposed left turn 
movement of 215 vehicles/day is 86 % of 250 vehicles/day threshold.  Study did not include future 
bypass road passenger and truck traffic.  Sec 109.46 requires lane for safe operations.  
 

17. Planning Commission denied the request on 09.12.2022. 
 

18. Dawson County Board of Commissioners heard the request on 09.16.2022.  The board voted to send a 
letter objecting the proposed annexation to Mayor and City Council. 
 
 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPTIONS:  
 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 

 
 

DEPARTMENT:  Planning and Zoning_____________________________________________________ 
 
REQUESTED BY: Diane Callahan________________________________________________________ 



















































































































































































































































                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: CITY MANAGER    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/17/2022      
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO PROVIDE PROJECT UPDATES  

 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED OUTLINE  
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Bob Bolz, City Manager    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #     13     
 

 

 



CITY MANAGER REPORT 

OCTOBER 11 FOR OCTOBER 17, 2022, MEETING 

Food Truck Night: Our October Food Truck Night was another great success featuring good food and fellowship. 
Food trucks included Brookton Catfish School, Black Market BBQ, Get Skewers, Egg Roll Boyz, Anutie Anne’s 
Pretzels, and Best Ice Cream on Wheels. Balloons & magic sponsored by State Farm, free popcorn and goodies 
sponsored by Crye-Leike Realtors, and live music featuring J. W. Griffin sponsored by GA Farm Bureau agent 
Patrick Holman. 
 
Christmas Tree Lighting: This special event is scheduled for November 19th and will include the parade, food 
trucks, the Jingle Market, musical and dancing entertainment, and the grand tree lighting. 

Director of Downtown Development, Tourism, and Historic Preservation: We were excited to have Amanda 
Edmondson join our team on October 3rd in this role. She has hit the job running and we look forward to great things. 
She developed billboard ads fund by on behalf of the DDA. The two ads, one north bound and one south bound are 
in place to remind people that our downtown will be open during the Moonshine Festival. A second add will start on 
each board after the festival and spread the word bout our Christmas special event to be held on November 19th.   
 
Downtown Strategic Plan Grant from ARC: We have been awarded the grant and the contract has been executed. 
We will now begin working with ARC to develop and RFP for sending out to potential vendors. 
 
Planning & Zoning Director: We are happy to report that Harmit Bedi will join our team in this role starting October 
17, 2022. He has 30 years of experience having served in like roles at cities such as Woodstock, Snellville, Sandy 
Springs, Grovetown, and Savannah. 
 
Civitan Grant: The Dawsonville Civitan Club awarded the city grants totaling $11,900.00. $1,900.00 for a sidewalk 
from the senior home connecting to one of our sidewalks to be built leading into Main Street Park. $10,000.00 has 
been allocated for improvements to the special needs portion of the Main Street Park playground. Much thanks to a 
wonderful civic club for other great donations. 
 
AEMC Grant: On behalf of the city, Clerk Banister and Public Works Director Hansard accepted a $10,000.00 grant 
from the AEMC Board of Directors which will go towards safety netting around portions of the playground to prevent 
disc golfers from accidently sailing frisbees and hitting a child. The netting installation is finished looks good. 
 
OPB Grant for Water due to Population Increase: No news on the grant we applied for offered by the Governor’s 
Office of OPD that can be awarded to municipalities experiencing significant population increases. The grant request 
totaled $1,154,720.00 and would be used to cover the cost of drilling and setting up operation of the new well. The 
grant requires a 75-25 match; so, our portion would be $285,000.00. We already had budgeted in our Enterprise 
Fund for the total amount. If awarded, this could represent a savings of up to $896,220.00 
 
Phone System Upgrade: Our new phone system is in place, and we continue to work out some bugs. 
 
Impact Fees Study: The City Manager and the Finance Administrator met with GMRC’s Joe Rothwell to identify 
information to gather for the Impact Fee Study and staff are working to assemble the requested information. 



Water Meter Upgrade: The project continues at a very impressive rate, with almost all of the meters installed and 
the radio system to follow soon thereafter.  
 
Wastewater Treatment Plant: We await comments from USDA with regards to the package Turnipseed Engineering 
submitted for their permitting process and funding consideration. 
 
Maple Hill Detention Pond: This project I complete. We are dealing with some residents who have not submitted 
their fees.  

Thunder Ridge Erosion Issues: Fines are paid, and the stop work order is lifted. We will not need Municipal Court 
in October. 

Deputy Program with Sheriff’s Office: Deputy Jacob Champion has returned to his regular schedule which 
includes work every other weekend. They are interviewing for our second officer now. 

Moonshine Festival: Staff are working with K4K as we prepare for this massive special event. We have alerted 
DCSO to the number of officers we will need and worked out other last-minute details. All smoothly so far. The event 
will occur October 20-22. 

GRHOF Ghost Walk: This special event is scheduled for October 27-28. 

Farmer’s Market:  The Farmer’s Market has closed for the season and reported a great year. 
 
Fall Flu Clinic at the Farmer’s Market: The local Department of Public Health hosted a flu clinic this Thursday the 
Farmer’s Market.  

Mulch Replenished: All the mulch at the Farmer’s Market, Main Street Park, and around City Hall has been 
replenished.  
 
Main Street Park Projects: 
 

• Disc Golf: Signs and maps are ordered and installation of safety netting along the boundary between the 
course and the playground this week has been installed.  
 

• Basketball Court: The PW Director met with engineers and the selected vendor as the grading plan and 
bid packages is being developed. 

 
• Pickleball Courts:  The PW Director met with engineers and the selected vendor as the grading plan and 

bid packages is being developed. 
 

• Shade: Staff continue researching shade for various locations in the park.  
 

• Skate Park Expansion: Staff are estimating cost for expansion of this amenity. 
  

• Small Bathroom between Shelter #3 and Skate Park/Court Area: We are working identify a modular rest 
room that can be set on site after grading and hooked up to utilities.  

 
• Stage: Staff are researching the purchase of a hydraulic, mobile stage, similar to what we used at the tree 

lighting event. Since it is portable it can be set up and taken down in a few hours. This idea is opposed to an 
amphitheater. Our concerns for an amphitheater include cost, additionally facility would sit outside, weather, 



and possibly get vandalized. As we develop more research, we will present pros, cons, and a 
recommendation soon.  

 
• Dog Park: Eagle Scout candidate Palmer Hartley has finished his project complete with obstacles for the 

dogs, signage, and an entry way. The sidewalk and landscape work should start within the month.  
 

• Bridge & Trail to Library: EPD approved a culvert at the location where the bridge was to be constructed 
connecting Main Street Park to the library via walkway. The IGA was approved by the BOC on October 6th. 

 
• Sidewalk to Main Street Park from Care Facility: We now have bids to connect the care facility to the 

park. The Dawson County Civitan Club will reimburse the city for the portion of the sidewalk on their 
property, and we will construct and pay for the sidewalk on city property. The engineer we met with 
regarding the sidewalk projects is determining what we need to do with this sidewalk to ensure ADA 
compliance. 

 
• Geocaching Site: Geocaching is a sport that is growing in popularity. There has existed a cache at the 

GRHOF for years. We have been approached by a volunteer geocaching enthusiast that wants to install and 
will maintain three sites, one in Main Street Park, one at the Dog Park, and one at Wallace Park. Staff have 
met with her, and we are awaiting her official proposal. 
 

• Splash Pad: Research into the possibility of adding this amenity is underway. I will attach some 3-D 
renderings for four pads with cost estimates. These are for flow-through water not recycled. 

 
Covid Protocol: Currently no staff are out due to Covid. 
 
Niche Columbarium: Staff are researching potential models and cost for this addition to our cemetery. We hope to 
offer you cost proposals at the second meeting in October. 
 
Water First Program: Chuck Benefield, formerly of GTB now with CEC is drafting a proposal to prepare the city’s 
involvement in the Water First Program.  
 
Comprehensive Plan: It is almost time to begin reviewing our city’s comprehensive plan last completed in 2018. 
This formal process should start in September. We are working with Adam Hazell of GMRC planning to begin this 
process and discussing update of our CIE as part of that plan. 
 
Old Cemetery to National Register of Historic Places: Pre-pandemic, the city was working on getting the 
cemetery listed on the National Register of Historic Places. The process got put on hold due to the pandemic. Staff 
are working with Joe Rothwell at GMRC to get this project re-started. 
 
Leak Adjustments: 1 Leak Adjustment this month. 

Water $82.44   Sewer $128.68 Total $211.12 

Calendar YTD     $15,617.24 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  10/17/2022       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO PRESENT FUND BALANCE AND ACTIVITY THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 

 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED FINANCIAL REPORTS  
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #  14   
 

 

 



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
SPLOST VII

July 1, 2022 - September 30, 2022

SPLOST VII
Budget Actual Percentage

REVENUES
       Taxes 1,599,900         290,705            18.17%
       Interest 100                   638                   638.00%
       Other -                   -                   0.00%

               Total revenues 1,600,000         291,343            18.21%

EXPENDITURES (Capital Outlays)
       City hall acquisition -                   -                   #DIV/0!
       Roads and sidewalks -                   -                   #DIV/0!
       Public works equipment - roads -                   -                   0.00%
       Land Acq. / Downtown 789,000            689,000            0.00%
       Public works equipment - sewer -                   -                   0.00%
       Water projects/Sewer Projects 677,000            -                   0.00%
       Public works equipment - water 34,000              -                   0.00%
       Farmers market -                   -                   #DIV/0!
       Parks and recreation 100,000            -                   0.00%

               Total expenditures 1,600,000         689,000            43.06%

TOTAL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (397,657)          

      Transfer in From Reserves 397,657            
 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                   



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
GENERAL FUND

July 1, 2022 - September 30, 2022

25%

Budget Actual Percentage
REVENUES
      Taxes 2,163,050$       494,467$          22.86%
      Licenses and permits 91,900              14,258              15.51%
      Intergovernmental revenues 6,000                -                   0.00%
      Fees 256,975            26,990              10.50%
      Other 796,326            50,427              6.33%

               Total revenues 3,314,251         586,142            17.69%

EXPENDITURES
   Department:
      Council 134,400            36,123              26.88%
      Mayor 22,860              3,664                16.03%
      Elections 15,000              -                   0.00%
      Administration 1,769,862         359,946            20.34%
      City Hall building 163,694            25,108              15.34%
      Animal control 1,536                -                   0.00%
      Roads 584,363            155,783            26.66%
      Parks 65,528              24,219              36.96%
      Planning and zoning 440,008            121,972            27.72%
      Economic development 117,000            3,000                2.56%

 
               Total expenditures 3,314,251         729,815            22.02%

TOTAL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (143,673)          

      Transfer in From Reserves 143,673            

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                   



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
WATER, SEWER, AND GARBAGE FUND

July 1, 2022 - September 30, 2022

Budget Actual Percentage
REVENUES
       Water fees 800,000$         237,817$         29.73%
       Sewer fees 900,000           276,727           30.75%
       Garbage fees 230,200           74,053             32.17%
       Miscellaneous 357,683           183,088           51.19%

               
               Total revenues 2,287,883        771,685           33.73%

EXPENDITURES
        Depreciation 574,000           152,199           26.52%
        Garbage service 230,200           50,408             21.90%
        Group insurance 164,000           52,669             32.12%
        Insurance -                  455                  #DIV/0!
        Interest 87,450             20,122             23.01%
        Payroll taxes 31,000             7,279               23.48%
        Professional 193,000           159,691           82.74%
        Miscellaneous 149,311           22,092             14.80%
        Repairs/supplies 229,000           30,952             13.52%
        Retirement 24,000             6,424               26.77%
        Salaries 355,672           97,357             27.37%
        Technical services 77,000             18,562             24.11%
        Utilities 173,250           29,143             16.82%

               Total expenditures 2,287,883        647,353           28.29%

INCOME (LOSS) 124,332           



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
SPLOST VI

July 1, 2022 - September 30, 2022

SPLOST VI
Budget Actual Percentage

REVENUES
       Taxes -                   -                   #DIV/0!
       Interest 100                   86                     86.00%
       Other 42,900              -                   0.00%

               Total revenues 43,000              86                     0.20%

EXPENDITURES (Capital Outlays)
       City hall acquisition -                   -                   #DIV/0!
       Roads and sidewalks -                   #DIV/0!
       Public works equipment - roads -                   44,219              0.00%
       Sewer projects -                   -                   0.00%
       Public works equipment - sewer 34,000              -                   0.00%
       Water projects -                   -                   0.00%
       Public works equipment - water -                   -                   0.00%
       Farmers market 9,000                2,250                25.00%
       Parks and recreation -                   -                   0.00%

               Total expenditures 43,000              46,469              108.07%

TOTAL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (46,383)            

      Transfer in From Reserves 46,383              
 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                   


	1. 10.17.2022 AGENDA City Council Regular Meeting and Work Session
	7. Executive Summary For Agenda Items CONSENT AGENDA
	7a. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items MINUTES
	7a. 2. 10.03.2022 MINUTES City Council Regular Meeting.DRAFT
	8. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items INTRODUCTION
	9. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION
	10. 1 Executive Summary PROCLAMATION
	10. 1a Proclamation-Dawsonville Hardware Store
	11 1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AGENDA ANX C220122_JIM CHAPMAN COMMUNITIES
	11. 2. ANX-C2200122
	ANX C2200122.pdf
	09.15.2022 DC BOC ANX-ZA C2200122.pdf

	12. 1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AGENDA ZA C220123_JIM CHAPMAN COMMUNITIES
	12. 2. ZAC2200123
	13. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items CITY MANAGER
	13. 2. 10172022 CITY MANAGER REPORT
	14. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR
	14. 2. Financial Statements-SEPT22
	SPLOST VII
	GF Budget
	WS vs Budget
	SPLOST




